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Our vision is to be the quality insurance
service provider, recognized and appraised
by performance and product development
to cater the changing needs of customers
and continuous growth of human resource.

Vision
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We wish to become a dynamic insurance service provider,
maintaining credibility and reputation while growing revenues
over the coming years and improving insurance products by
utilizing latest technologies. Saudi Pak Insurance Company
Limited focusing to build up a team of professionals by
imparting exhaustive training, education and career orientation
for the benefit of the insurance industry. We shall endeavor
our utmost to render the best possible service to our clients.

Mission
Statement
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NOTICE OF THE 5th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SAUDI PAK INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that the 5th Annual General Meeting of Saudi Pak Insurance Company Limited will be held

on Monday , April 19, 2010 at 12.30 p.m. at19th Floor, Saudi Pak Tower, Islamabad to transact the following

business.

1. To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 10, 2009.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2009 alongwith the

Directors and Auditors’ reports thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Karachi  March 26, 2010 Mohammad Imtiaz A. Aziz
Company Secretary

NOTES :
i The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 12, 2010

to April 19, 2010 (both days inclusive).

ii A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint

another member as a proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her save that a company

being a member of this Company may appoint as proxy or as its representative under

Section 162 of the Ordinance any person though not a member of the Company, and

the person so appointed shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the

company which he represents, as if he was an individual member of the Company.

iii The instrument appointing a proxy shall be lodged with the Company Secretary not

less than 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting. A member shall not be entitled

to appoint more than one proxy. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more

than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member with the Company, all such

instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

I am pleased to welcome the share holders to the fifth Annual General Meeting of Saudi Pak Insurance

Company Limited.

The performance of the economy remained subdued during 2009 owing mainly to energy crisis and

inflationary pressure which continued to adversely impact the progress in manufacturing and export sectors.

 Imports were discouraged due to constraints of demand and depreciation of Rupee against foreign currencies.

During the year under review, the insurance industry experienced little growth in the premium income but

was spared from the effect of any catastrophic event. Over all claims ratios therefore reflected improvement

as compared to the preceding years.

In view of not so stable economic conditions, the Company further streamlined its strategy of risk selection

and focused on consolidation of operations and reduction in expenses. As a result of these measures, the

Company was, Alhamdolillah, able to record a marginal profit for the first time in 5 years of its operations.

I trust that the management will make efforts to increase its market share and improve productivity by

controlling claims and expense ratios.

I would like to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their professional guidance

and our valued customers for their continued support. I also commend the efforts of the Board of Directors

and appreciate the management and staff for their commitment and hard work.

Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Chairman

Karachi.

12th March, 2010
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors are pleased to present the 5th annual report and the audited Financial Statements of Saudi Pak Insurance

Company Limited for the year ended Dec 31, 2009 on behalf of the Board of Directors for the year 2009.

In the year 2009, the country remained in the grip of economic recession owing to continued power crises, high inflation

and weak Law and Order situation. Sustained high interest rates discouraged the corporate and consumer lendings,

affecting the growth of industrial sector. Insurance industry which generally follows the economic and industrial indices

was unable to maintain its growth. The expected premium of Non Life Insurance sector for year 2009 remained at Rs.

35 billion which is same as in 2008. The insurance penetration, in fact, reduced from 0.45 percent to around 0.33 percent

of GDP.

Under the circumstances the company proceeded prudently concentrating on acquiring sound business. The company,

therefore, was able to write a premium of Rs. 230.459 million which was Rs. 52 million less than the premium written

in 2008. Side by side with consolidating operations, management expenses and claim ratios were brought under strict

control. As a result, underwriting loss decreased to Rs. 8.22 million from Rs. 44.632 million in 2008. The investment

income increased to Rs. 10.793 million against a loss of Rs. 12.596 million in 2008. The company achieved a break even

position in 2009.

The break up of premium and other financials are as under:

Premium 2009 2008
Rs.  Rs.

Fire and property damage 114,150,680 140,334,249

Marine, aviation and transport   19,042,677   20,275,216

Motor  76,927,000 108,541,592

Others 20,338,689 13,321,017

230,459,046             282,472,074

Financial Highlights

Underwriting results (8,221,145) (44,632,233)

Investment Income 10,793,363 (12,596,261)

Other Income 9,434,616 9,764,360

Profit /(loss) before tax 1,472,215 (59,883,832)

Profit/ (loss) after tax 847,962 (59,883,832)

Earning /(loss) per share 0.03 (2.63)

Claims

Claims ratios showed improvement more particularly in motor portfolio. The settlement of claims was also streamlined

during the year.
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Reinsurance Arrangement

Insurance industry as a whole, experienced difficulty on the reinsurance front because of the combination of adverse
claim scenario in property portfolio and the security concerns of the country. One of the major reinsurer moved out
of the market and two other AA rated securities reduced their commitment on various treaties and facultative business.
The company therefore, had to revamp its arrangements. The treaties for the year 2010 were renewed with SCOR-Re
of France retaining the lead, BEST Re, Malaysian Re, Trust Re and Pak Re in the follow up. All Reinsurers are A Rated
by international credit rating agencies.

Credit Rating

The company is Rated A- by JCR – VIS.

Pattern of Share Holding

A statement of pattern of shareholding as on December 31, 2009 is annexed with this report.

Board Meetings

During the year 2009, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held and the attendance by each director is given
under:

         Total Number of  Number of Board 
         Board Meetings Meetings attended

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir 5 5
Mr. Javed Masud 5 4
Mr. Farrukh S. Ansari 5 5
Mr. Zulfiqar Hussain Shah 3 2 (Resigned)
Mr. Aftab Iqbal Khan 3 2 (Resigned)
Syed Liaquat Ali 5 1
Mr. Goharulayn Afzal 5 2
Mr. Naim Farooqui 3 1 (Resigned)
Mr. Fasihuddin Ahmed 2 1 (New appointment)
Mr. Javed Aslam Callea 2 2 (New appointment)
Mr.Nasim Beg 2 1 (Resigned)
Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed – CEO 5 5

During the year Directors Mr. Zulfiqar Hussain Shah, Mr. Naim Farooqui, Mr. Aftab Iqbal Khan and Mr. Nasim Beg
resigned,  while Mr. Goharulayn Afzal,  Mr. Javed Aslam Callea,  Mr. Fasihuddin Ahmed and Mr. Nasim Beg joined
the Board as Directors. The Board appreciated the contribution made by the outgoing directors.

Auditors

M/S M. Yousuf Adil Saleem & Company Chartered Accountants a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired
and have offered themselves as auditors of the company for the year ending December 31, 2010.
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Future Outlook

The country is expected to perform better in 2010 with manufacturing sector posting positive growth. Textile, fertilizer,
power and automobile are in particular set on growth path. This development coupled with improved security situation
would lead to enhanced prospects for insurance industry. Saudi Pak insurance will make its best efforts to augment
its business without compromising on quality of business.

Acknowledgement

We  are grateful  to AON,  brokers and  re-insurers particularly SCOR –Re for their valuable support and advice in
re-insurance matters.  Thanks are due to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and State Bank of
Pakistan  for their guidance, we are also thankful to our clients for their patronage and the shareholders for their
continued support. We also appreciate our employees and the marketing staff for their dedication and hard work.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed
Managing Director & CEO
March 12, 2010
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising of: -

i. balance sheet;
ii. profit and loss account;
iii. statement of comprehensive income;
iv. statement of changes in equity;
v. cash flow statement;
vi. statement of premiums;
vii. statement of claims;
viii. statement of expenses; and
ix. statement of investment income

of Saudi Pak Insurance Company Limited as at 31 December 2009 together with the notes forming part thereof,
for the year then ended.  It  is the  responsibility  of the Company’s Board of Directors to establish and maintain
a system of internal control, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX
of 2000) and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall financial statements presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

a. proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000
and the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b. the financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and accurately reflect the books and records of the
Company and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied, except for the changes
mentioned in note 3, with which we concur;

M. Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Cavish Court, A-35, Block 7 & 8
KCHSU, Sharea Faisal,
Karachi-75350
Pakistan

UAN: +92 (0) 21 111-55-2626
Fax: +92 (0) 21- 3454 1314
Web: www.deloitte.com

11
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c. the financial statements, together with the notes thereon, present fairly in all material respects,
the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2009 and of the profit, its comprehensive
income,  its  cash  flows and changes in equity for the year then ended in accordance with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required to be
disclosed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

d. no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980)

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2008 were audited by another
firm of Chartered Accountants who had expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements
vide their report dated March 7, 2009.

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner:
Mushtaq Ali Hirani

Karachi
Dated: March 12, 2010
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 2009 2008
Note Rupees Rupees

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital

50,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000,000 500,000,000

Paid-up share capital 5 325,000,000 325,000,000

Accumulated loss      (124,130,950) (124,269,094)

Total equity 200,869,050 200,730,906

UNDERWRITING PROVISIONS

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 190,234,895 247,999,260

Provision for uneaerned premium 95,637,241 132,908,416

Additional provision for unexpired risks  2,000,656 3,531,476

Commission income - unearned 11,946,244 16,818,556

Total underwriting provisions 299,819,036 401,257,708

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff retirement benefits 6 –       217,895

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Premium received in advance –       85,158

Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 6,660,359 17,400,753

Accrued expenses 7 924,023 1,098,258

Other creditors and accruals 8 14,426,220 13,913,141

22,010,602 32,497,310

Total Liabilities 321,829,638 433,972,913

Total equity and liabilities 522,698,688 634,703,819

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 9

BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31, 2009

13
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 2009 2008
Note Rupees Rupees

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 10

   Cash and other equivalent 108,214 324,617
   Current and other accounts 29,950,863 88,767,854

   Deposits maturing within 12 months 2,330,000 730,000

32,389,077 89,822,471

LOANS (usecured, considered good)
   To employees 11 671,585 772,598

INVESTMENTS 12 100,488,348 88,613,245

CURRENT ASSETS - OTHERS

   Premiums due but unpaid 13 38,368,361 52,342,999
   Amounts due from other insurers/reinsurers 14 78,705,068 69,929,387
   Accrued investment income 15 2,235,537 1,724,372
   Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 16 158,453,079 199,162,904
   Taxation-payment less provision 3,862,077 3,149,582
   Deferred commission expense 10,229,239 15,976,594
   Prepayments 17 57,319,249 72,374,724
   Sundry receivables 18 8,694,791 2,563,908

357,867,401 417,224,470

FIXED ASSETS 19

Tangible
   Office improvement 9,810,217 10,845,799
   Furniture and fixtures 1,164,782 1,296,778
   Office equipment 3,277,176 3,888,618
   Computers 1,016,967 1,302,640
   Motor vehicles 16,013,135 20,937,200

31,282,277 38,271,035

TOTAL ASSETS 522,698,688 634,703,819

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Chairman

Farrukh S. Ansari
Director

Javed Aslam Callea
Director
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Fire & Marine   

  Note Property Aviation & Motor Miscellaneous 2009 2008
Damage Transport   

                     Rupees

Revenue account

  Net premium revenue 17,967,058 11,400,634 86,239,963 9,243,030 124,850,685 145,285,958

  Net claims (12,260,898) (4,604,397) (47,970,156) (5,103,654) (69,939,105) (103,300,564)

  Premium deficiency expense – – 957,181 573,639 1,530,820 –

  Management expenses 20 (32,583,257) (5,435,556) (21,958,101) (5,805,491) (65,782,405) (86,684,429)

  Net Commission 8,689,270 (1,263,048) (5,870,045) (437,317) 1,118,860 66,802

Underwriting result (18,187,827) 97,633 11,398,842 (1,529,793) (8,221,145) (44,632,233)

Investment income / (loss) 10,793,363 (12,596,261)

Other income 21 9,434,616 9,764,360

General and administration expenses 20 (10,534,619) (12,419,698)

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 1,472,215 (59,883,832)

Provision for taxation - current 22 (624,253) –

Profit/ (loss) after tax 847,962 (59,883,832)

Profit and loss appropriation account:

Balance at commencement of the year (124,269,094) (64,385,262)

Comprehensive income 138,144  (59,883,832)

Balance of accumulated loss at end of the year (124,130,950) (124,269,094)

Earnings per share
   – basic and diluted 23 0.03 (2.63)

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended December 31, 2009

Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Chairman

Farrukh S. Ansari
Director

Javed Aslam Callea
Director
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Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Chairman

Farrukh S. Ansari
Director

Javed Aslam Callea
Director

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended December 31, 2009

Share Accumulated
capital loss Total

Rupees

Balance as at Janaury 01, 2008 250,000,000 (64,385,262) 185,614,738

Comprehensive income for the year
   ended December 31, 2008 –        (59,883,832) (59,883,832)

Transactions with owners

   Issue of right shares 75,000,000 – 75,000,000

Balance as at December 31, 2008 325,000,000 (124,269,094) 200,730,906

Comprehensive income for the year
   ended December 31, 2009 –        138,144 138,144

Balance as at December 31, 2009 325,000,000 (124,130,950) 200,869,050

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended December 31, 2009

 
2009 2008

Rupees Rupees

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating cash flows

(a) Underwriting activities

Premiums received 244,348,526 282,046,152
Reinsurance premiums paid (138,485,494) (149,265,723)
Claims paid (202,601,695) (358,609,446)
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 129,318,972 221,301,715 
Commission paid (26,915,540) (33,179,977)
Commission received 27,330,569 32,978,397 
Other underwriting payments (58,746,518) (69,447,756)

Net cash out flow from underwriting activities (25,751,180) (74,176,638)

(b) Other operating activities

Income tax paid (1,336,748) (1,110,660)
General and administrative expenses paid (9,737,984) (10,480,359)
Other operating payments (30,733,862) (19,720,848)
Other operating receipts 617,730 26,270,336
Loans refunded 101,013 688,251

Net cash out flow from other operating activities (41,089,851) (4,353,280)

Total cash out flow from all operating activities (66,841,031) (78,529,918)

Investment activities

Profit/return received 11,572,274 9,184,141
Dividend received 990,150 923,372
Payments for investments (88,967,311) (92,563,327)
Proceeds from disposal of investments  83,462,912 66,045,624
Fixed capital expenditure (345,452) (8,806,924)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,695,064 285,555

Total cash in flow / (out flow) from investing activities 9,407,637 (24,931,559)

Financing activities

Proceeds from the issue of share capital –        75,000,000

Total cash in flow from financing activities –        75,000,000

Total cash out flow from all activities (57,433,394) (28,461,477)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 89,822,471 118,283,948

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32,389,077 89,822,471

18
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Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Chairman

Farrukh S. Ansari
Director

Javed Aslam Callea
Director

Note 2009 2008
Rupees Rupees

Reconciliation to profit and loss account

Operating cash flows (66,841,031) (78,529,918)

Depreciation / amortization expenses (5,310,902) (7,692,280)

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 671,756 25,102 

Profit on disposal of investments 7,460,601 323,949

Provision for doubtful debts (1,019,206) (5,622,976)

Provision for unexpired risks 1,530,820 –

Decrease in assets other than cash (60,262,466) (20,939,748)

Decrease in liabilities 115,417,377 55,464,429

Revaluation adjustments (584,500) (15,270,251)

Other income 9,434,616 11,593,011

Dividend income 975,150 764,850

Provision for taxation (624,253) –

Profit / (loss) after taxation 847,962 (59,883,832)

Definition of Cash

Cash comprises of cash in hand, policy stamps, bond papers cheques in hand, bank balance and other deposits which are readily
convertible to cash in hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day to day basis.

Cash for the purpose of statement of cash flows consists of:

Cash and other equivalents                 10

Cash and other equivalents 108,214 324,617

Current and saving accounts 29,950,863 88,767,854

Deposits maturing within 12 months 2,330,000 730,000

32,389,077 89,822,471

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Saudi Pak Insurance Annual Report 2009

Capt. Azhar Ehtesham Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Rashid Zahir
Chairman

Farrukh S. Ansari
Director

Javed Aslam Callea
Director

STATEMENT OF EXPENSES
For the year ended December 31, 2009

Business underwritten inside Pakistan

22

Direct and facultative

1 Fire and property damage 14,838,931 11,919,461 6,991,474 19,766,918 32,583,257 52,350,175 28,456,188 23,893,987 34,094,172

2 Marine, aviation and transport 3,522,893 358,319 400,312 3,480,900 5,435,556 8,916,456 2,217,852 6,698,604 7,386,912

3 Motor 5,140,837 3,332,850 2,122,728 6,350,959 21,958,101 28,309,060 480,914 27,828,146 41,195,311

4 Miscellaneous 1,834,004 365,964 714,725 1,485,243 5,805,491 7,290,734 1,047,926 6,242,808 3,941,232

25,336,665 15,976,594 10,229,239 31,084,020 65,782,405 96,866,425 32,202,880 64,663,545 86,617,627

Treaty –        –       –       –       –       –       –       –       –

Grand total 25,336,665 15,976,594 10,229,239 31,084,020 65,782,405 96,866,425 32,202,880 64,663,545 86,617,627

*  Commission from reinsurance is arrived at after taking the impact of the opening and closing balance of unearned commission

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Commission
paid or
payable

Deferred commission

Opening Closing

Net
commission

expenses

* Commission
from

reinsurers
Class

2008
Net

underwriting
expense

Other
management

expenses
Underwriting

expenses

2009
Net

underwriting
expense

a b c (d=a+b-c) e (f=d+e) g (h=f-g)

Rupees
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STATEMENT OF CLAIMS
For the year ended December 31, 2009

Business underwritten inside Pakistan

21

Direct and facultative

1 Fire and property damage 115,123,222 180,244,821 131,114,020 65,992,421 96,353,099 179,125,324 136,503,748 53,731,523 12,260,898 19,367,421

2 Marine, aviation and transport 5,128,719 4,452,569 6,281,805 6,957,955 812,878 905,886 2,446,566 2,353,558 4,604,397 4,057,154

3 Motor 69,404,963 43,214,940 30,433,523 56,623,546 10,861,940 3,782,008 1,573,458 8,653,390 47,970,156 79,230,415

4 Miscellaneous 12,944,791 20,086,930 22,405,547 15,263,408 7,580,133 15,349,686 17,929,307 10,159,754 5,103,654 645,574

Total 202,601,695 247,999,260 190,234,895 144,837,330 115,608,050 199,162,904 158,453,079 74,898,225 69,939,105 103,300,564

Treaty –       –       –       –       –       –       –       –       –       –

Grand total 202,601,695 247,999,260 190,234,895 144,837,330 115,608,050 199,162,904 158,453,079 74,898,225 69,939,105 103,300,564

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Reinsurance and other
recoveries in respect of

outstanding claims

2009
Net claims

expenseClaims paid Outstanding claims

Opening Closing

Claims
expense

Reinsurance
and other
recoveries
received

Reinsurance
and other
recoveries
revenueOpening Closing

Class

2008
Net claims

expense

a b c (d=a+c-b) e f g (h=e+g-f) (i=d-h)

Rupees
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Direct and facultative

1 Fire and property damage 114,150,680 75,700,748 53,782,952 136,068,476 100,577,666 64,911,676 47,387,924 118,101,418 17,967,058 16,859,080

2 Marine, aviation and transport 19,042,677 2,308,981 2,163,849 19,187,809 7,864,451 816,374 893,650 7,787,175 11,400,634 12,749,497

3 Motor 76,927,000 49,359,244 31,764,305 94,521,939 7,666,283 3,781,216 3,165,523 8,281,976 86,239,963 108,773,639

4 Miscellaneous 20,338,689 5,539,443 7,926,135 17,951,997 11,636,700 1,607,174 4,534,907 8,708,967 9,243,030 6,903,742

Total 230,459,046 132,908,416 95,637,241 267,730,221 127,745,100 71,116,440 55,982,003 142,879,537 124,850,685 145,285,958

Treaty –         –        –        –        –        –        –        –        –        –

Grand total 230,459,046 132,908,416 95,637,241 267,730,221 127,745,100 71,116,440 55,982,003 142,879,537 124,850,685 145,285,958

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF PREMIUMS
For the year ended December 31, 2009

Business underwritten inside Pakistan

2008
Net

premium
revenue

Prepaid reinsurance
premium ceded 2009

Net
premium
revenue

Premiums
written

Unearned premium
reserve

Opening Closing
Premiums

earned
Reinsurance

ceded
Reinsurance

expenseOpening Closing
Class

a b c (d=a+b-c) e f g (h=e+f-g) (i=d-h)

Rupees
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2009 2008

Note Rupees Rupees

 

Income from trading investments

Gain / (loss) on trading 583,289 (358,908)
Dividend income 42,500 96,000

625,789 (262,908)

Income from non-trading investments

Held to maturity

Return on government securities 3,205,130 1,853,753

Available-for-sale

Dividend income 932,650 668,850

4,137,780 2,522,603

Gain on sale of non-trading investments

– Available-for-sale 6,877,312 682,857

Loss on revaluation of held for trading investments (584,500) (2,056,492)

Provision for impairment in the value of
   available-for-sale investments –     (13,213,759)

Investment related expenses 12.5 (263,018) (268,562)

Net investment income 10,793,363 (12,596,261)

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2009
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Saudi Pak Insurance Company Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company incorporated in Islamabad,
Pakistan on  February 15, 2005 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company is engaged in non-life
insurance business comprising fire, marine, motor and miscellaneous. The Company commenced its commercial
operations on April 13,  2005. The registered office of the Company is situated at 19th Floor, Saudi Pak Tower
61-A, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad and principal office of the Company is situated at 2nd floor State Life Building
No. 2-A Wallace Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

The name of the parent entity of the Company is Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Company Limited.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the  format of financial statements issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through Securities and Exchange Commission
(Insurance) Rules, 2002 [SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002], vide S.R.O 938 dated December 12, 2002.

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies
Ordinance,1984, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Insurance Ordinance,
2000, and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the
Companies Ordinance. 1984, Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain financial
instruments are carried at  fair value and staff retirement benefits are stated at present value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is also the Company's functional and
presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest rupees. 

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the requirement of approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan requires to make certain judgments, accounting estimates and assumptions. It also
requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.
Actual results may differ from these estimates and associated assumptions are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience, statutory requirements and other factors considered reasonable in the circumstances.
Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future
periods affected. The estimates and assumptions that are expected to have a significant effect on the assets
and liabilities, income and expenses have been disclosed in note 4.23 to these financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2009
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES - STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND
AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE EFFECTIVE IN
THE CURRENT YEAR

3.1 IAS 1 (revised), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (effective from January 1, 2009). The revised standard
prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in equity’) in the statement
of changes in equity. It requires non-owner changes in equity to be presented separately from owner changes in
equity. All non-owner changes in equity are required to be shown in a performance statement, but entities can
choose whether to present one performance statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or two statements
(the income statement and statement of comprehensive income). Where entities restate or reclassify comparative
information, they are required to present a restated statement of financial position as at the beginning comparative
period, in addition to the current requirement to present statements of financial position at the end of the current
period and comparative period.

The Company has applied IAS 1 (revised) during the current year, and has accordingly changed its accounting
policy to comply with the new requirements of IAS. The Company has elected to present two statements (the
profit and loss account and statement of comprehensive income).  The change in presentation has not affected
the values of the net assets of the Company for either the current or any of the prior periods and there is no impact
on the earnings per share.

3.2 IAS 23 (Amendment) 'Borrowing costs' (effective from January 1, 2009). This standard requires an entity to
capitalize  borrowing  costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset (one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of that asset. The
option of immediately expensing those borrowing costs has been removed. Further, the definition of borrowing
cost  has  been amended so that interest expense is calculated using the effective interest rate method. The
Company has adopted the aforementioned amendments from January 1, 2009. The management of the Company
believes that presently this amendment does not have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

3.3 IAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’ (effective from January 1, 2009).

    – The amendment clarifies that a plan amendment that results in a change in the extent to which benefit promises
are affected by future salary increases is a curtailment, while an amendment that changes benefits attributable
to past service gives rise to a negative past service cost if it results in a reduction in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation

             – The definition of return on plan assets has been amended to state that plan administration costs are deducted in
the calculation of return on plan assets only to the extent that such costs have been excluded from measurement
of the defined benefit obligation.

The distinction between short term and long term employee benefits will be based on whether benefits are due
to be settled within or after 12 months of employee service being rendered.

IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets', requires contingent liabilities to be disclosed,
which are not recognized. IAS 19 has been amended to be consistent.

The Company has adopted the aforementioned amendments from January 1, 2009. The management of the
Company believes that this amendment does not have any  impact on the Company's financial statements.
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3.4 IAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of assets’ (effective from January 1, 2009). As per the new requirements,
where fair value less costs to sell is calculated on the basis of discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent
to those for value-in-use calculation should be made. The Company has adopted the aforementioned amendments
from January 1, 2009. The management of the Company believes that presently this amendment does not have
any  impact on the Company's financial statements.

3.5 IAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’ (effective from January 1, 2009). The amended standard states that
a prepayment may only be recognized in the event that payment has been made in advance of obtaining right
of access to goods or receipt of services. The Company has adopted the aforementioned amendments from
January 1, 2009. The management of the Company believes that this amendment does not have any  impact
on the Company's financial statements.

3.6 IFRS 4  - Insurance Contracts . The IFRS makes limited improvement to accounting for insurance contracts
until the Board completes the second phase of its project on insurance contracts. The standard also requires
that an entity issuing insurance contracts (an insurer) to disclose information about those contracts. The required
information has been disclosed in notes to these financial statements.

3.7 IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 28 April 2008)
supersedes IAS 30 - Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions and
the disclosure requirements of IAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. The application
of the standard did not have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than increase in
disclosures.

3.8 IFRS 8 - Operating Segments introduces the "management approach" to segment reporting. IFRS  8 will require
a change in the presentation and disclosure of segment information based on the  internal reports that are
regularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker in  order to assess each segment's
performance and to allocate resources to them. The application of  the standard has resulted in increased
disclosures only.

3.9 There are other amendments to the approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any
significant effect on the Bank's operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

3.10 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective
for  accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2010: -

3.10.1 Amendment to IFRS 5 ‘Measurement of non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held-for-sale’.
The amendment provides clarification that IFRS 5 specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-current
assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operations. It also clarifies that the general
requirement of IAS 1 still apply,  particularly  paragraph 15  (to  achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph
125 (sources of estimation uncertainty) of IAS 1.  The company  will apply IFRS 5 (amendment) from 1
January 2010. It is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

3.10.2 IFRIC – 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 01, 2009) states that when a Company distributes non cash assets to its shareholders as dividend, the
liability for the dividend is measured at fair value. If there are subsequent changes in the fair value before the
liability is discharged, this is recognized in equity. When the non cash asset is distributed, the difference
between the carrying amount and fair value is recognized in the income statement. As the Company does not
distribute non-cash assets to its shareholders, this interpretation has no impact on the Company’s financial
statements. 
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3.10.3 Revised IFRS 3 –   Business Combinations (effective for annual period beginning on or after July 01, 2009)
broadens among other things the definition of business resulting in more acquisitions being treated as business
combinations, contingent consideration to be measured at fair value, transaction costs other than share and debt
issue costs to be expensed, any pre-existing interest in an acquiree to be measured at fair value, with the related
gain or loss recognized in profit or loss and any non-controlling (minority) interest to be measured at either
fair value, or at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and liabilities of an acquiree, on a transaction-
by- transaction basis. The application of this standard is not likely to have an effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

3.10.4 Amendment to IAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation – Classification of Rights Issues (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after February 01, 2010). The IASB amended IAS 32 to allow rights, options
or warrants  to  acquire a fixed number of  the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any
currency  to be classified as equity  instruments  provided the  entity  offers  the rights, options or warrants
pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments.

3.10.5 IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 01, 2010). This interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for debt for equity swaps.
This interpretation has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

3.10.6 IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009) – effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
01, 2011. The revision amends the definition of a related party and modifies certain related party disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. The amendment would result in certain changes in disclosures.

3.10.7 Amendments to IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assets, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction  (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2011). These amendments
remove unintended consequences arising from the treatment of prepayments where there is a minimum funding
requirement. These amendments result in prepayments of contributions in certain circumstances being recognized
as an asset rather than an expense. This amendment is not likely to have any impact on Company’s financial
statements.

3.10.8 The International Accounting Standards Board made certain amendments to existing standards as part of its
Second annual improvements project. The effective dates for these amendments vary by standard and most
will be applicable to the Company’s 2010 financial statements.

3.10.9 There are other amendments to the approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2010 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any
significant effect on the Company's operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

3.11 Early adoption of standards

The Company did not early adopt new or amended standard in 2009.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.
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Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract it remains an insurance contract for the remainder
of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities
are extinguished or expired.

The Company neither issues investment contracts nor does it issue insurance contracts with discretionary
participation feature (DPF).

4.2 Premium

Premium written under a policy is recognized as income over the period of insurance from the date of issuance
of the policy to which it relates to its expiry. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the
policy, premium is recognized as revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk. The portion of
premium written relating to the unexpired period of coverage is recognized as unearned premium by the Company.
This liability is calculated by applying 1/24 method as specified in the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002.

Premium income includes administrative surcharge that represents documentation and other charges recovered
by the Company from policy holders in respect of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the premium written
restricted to a maximum of Rs. 2,000 per policy.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable
less provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is impaired, the Company
reduces the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and
loss account.

4.3 Reinsurance ceded

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential
for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period
as the related premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a
manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance
companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for
outstanding claims or settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract
are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on balance sheet date. If there is an objective evidence
that the reinsurance asset is impaired. The Company reduces  the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its
recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

4.4 Claim expense

General insurance claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not, related internal
and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction
for the value of salvage and other recoveries and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

28



The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred upto the balance sheet date which is measured
at the undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time
of the incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract. The
liability for claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)
and expected claims settlement costs.

Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual case estimates.
Provision for IBNR is based on the management's best estimate which takes into account the past trends, expected
future patterns of reporting of claims and the claims actually reported subsequent to the balance sheet date.

4.5 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries from the reinsurer are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which give rise
to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received.
Claims expenses are reported net of reinsurance in the profit and loss accounts.

4.6 Commission expense and other acquisition costs

Commission expense and other acquisition costs are charged to the profit and loss account at the time the policies
are accepted. Commission income from reinsurers is recognized at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance
policy by the Company. This income is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordance with the pattern
of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which the Company may
be entitled to under the terms of reinsurance is recognized on accrual basis.

4.7 Premium deficiency reserves

The Company maintains a provision in respect of premium deficiency for the class of business where the unearned
premium liability is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after reinsurance from claims and other
supplementary expenses expected to be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect of the unexpired policies
in that class of business at the balance sheet date. The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recorded
as an expense / income in profit and loss account for the year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated based on historical claim development. Judgments is
used in assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims. If these
ratios are adverse, premium deficiency is determined. The loss ratios estimated on these basis for the unexpired
portion are as follows:

%

Fire and property damage 86
Marine, aviation and transport 59
Motor 66
Miscellaneous 81

Based on an analysis of combined operating ratio for the expired period of each reportable segment. the management
considers that the unearned premium reserve for all classes of business as at the year end is adequate to meet
the expected future liability after reinsurance. from claims and other expenses, expected to be incurred after the
balance sheet date in respect of policies in those classes of business in force at the balance sheet date hence, no
reserve for the same has been made in these financial statements.

Saudi Pak Insurance Annual Report 2009
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4.8 Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for the services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of' the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.9 Taxation

4.9.1 Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates
expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also include adjustments,
where considered necessary, relating to prior year arising from assessments made during the current year.

4.9.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes.  Deferred  tax  liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account,
except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

4.10 Staff retirement benefits

4.10.1 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an approved defined gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who attain the
minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. Contributions to the fund are made based on actuarial
recommendations and in line with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The most recent actuarial
valuation was carried out for the year ended December  31, 2009 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gains / losses are recognized over the average remaining service life of the employees. Detail of the
scheme given in note 6 to the financial statements.

4.10.2 Defined contribution plan

The Company contributes to a provident fund scheme which covers all permanent employees. Equal contributions
are made both by the Company and the employees to the fund at the rate of 10 percent of basic salary plus cost
of living allowance. 



4.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances with banks in current, deposit with banks and stamps
in hand.

4.12 Investments

4.12.1 Recognition

All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and include
transaction costs, except for held for trading in which case transaction costs are charged to the profit and
loss account. These are recognized and classified as follows: -

-   Investment at fair value through profit and loss (Held for trading)
-   Held to maturity
-   Available for sale

4.12.2 Measurement

4.12.2.1 Investment at fair value through profit or loss -held for trading

Investments which are acquired principally for the purposes of generating profit from short term fluctuation
in market price or are part of the portfolio in which there is recent actual pattern of short term profit taking
are classified as held for trading.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these investments are remeasured at fair value. Gains or losses on investments
on remeasurement of these investments are recognized in the profit and loss account.

4.12.2.2 Held to maturity

Investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the ability to hold to maturity,
are classified as held to maturity and are initially measured at cost.

At subsequent reporting date, these are measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment, if any.
Any premium paid or discount availed on acquisition of held to maturity investment is deferred and amortized
over the term of the investment using the effective yield method.

4.12.2.3 Available for sale

Available for sale investments are those non-derivative investments that are designated as available for sale
or are not classified in any other category. These are primarily those investments that are intended to be held
for an undefined period of time or may be sold in response to the need for liquidity are classified as available
for sale. It also includes investments in associated undertakings where the Company does not have significant
influence. The Company follows trade date accounting for ‘regular way purchase and sales' of investments.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are stated at lower of cost or market value (market value being
taken as lower if fall is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the S.R.O. 938 issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in December 2002. The Company uses
latest stock exchange quotation to determine the market value of its quoted investments whereas, impairment
of unquoted investments is computed by reference to net assets of the investee on the basis of the latest
available audited / unaudited financial statements.
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Dividend income and entitlement of bonus shares are recognized when the Company’s right to receive such
dividend and bonus shares is established.

Gain / (loss) on remeasurement of available for sale investments are taken to non-owner changes in equity.

4.13 Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers

Liabilities for other insurers / reinsurers are carried at cost which is the fair value of consideration to be paid
in the future for services.

4.14 Fixed assets

4.14.1 Tangibles

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. if any.

Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to profit and loss account on the reducing balance method so as
to write-off depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life at the rates stated in note 19. Depreciation
on additions to fixed assets is charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized, while
no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact
on depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its fixed assets as at 31
December 2009 did not require any adjustment as its impact is considered insignificant.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss
account as and when incurred.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assets is recognized in
the profit and loss account in the year when asset is derecognized.

4.14.2 Intangible

These are recorded initially at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line method from the month,
when these assets are put to use, over their estimated useful life.

Amortization on addition and deletion of intangible assets during the year is charged to income in proportion
to the period of use.

The useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the balance sheet date.
Software development costs are only capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits are expected to
be derived by the Company.



4.15 Impairment

A financial asset is assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of such assets is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.

All impairment losses are recognized in the profit and loss account. Provisions for impairment are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Changes in the provisions are
recognized as income or expense.

4.16 Investment income

Income from held to maturity investments is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the
effective yield method on the investments.

Dividend income and element of bonus is recognized when the right to receive the same is established, i.e.,
at the time of the closure of share transfer books of the Company declaring the dividend and/or bonus.

Gains / losses on sale of investments are recognized in the profit and loss account at the time of sale.

Return on bank deposits is recognized on a time proportionate basis.

4.17 Expenses of management

Expenses of management allocated to various classes of business in proportion to the respective premium
written for the year. Expenses not allocable to the underwriting business are charged as administrative expenses.

4.18 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation
are recognized in the profit and loss account.

4.19 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends to either settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4.20 Financial instruments

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company become a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company losses control of contractual
rights that comprises the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. At the time of initial recognition all financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received for it.
Any gain or loss on Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to income directly.

4.21 Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The Company accounts
for segment reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the SEC (Insurance) Rules. 2002. The reported operating segments are also consistent
with the internal reporting provided to Strategy Committee and Board of Directors which are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The performance of segments is
evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each segment.

The Company has four primary business segments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor and
miscellaneous.

The fire and property damage insurance segment provides insurance covers against damages caused by fire,
riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, flood and electric fluctuation and  engineering
losses.

Marine insurance segment provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland
transit.

Motor insurance provides comprehensive vehicle coverage and indemnity against third party loss.

Miscellaneous insurance provides cover against loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, personal accident,
money, and other coverage.

Financing, investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are therefore, not allocated to
any segment. The accounting policies of operating segment are the same as those described in the summary
of significant accounting policies.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them
while the carrying amount of certain assets pertaining to two or more segments have been allocated to segments
on the net premium revenue basis. Those assets and liabilities which can not be allocated to a particular segment
on the above basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

4.22 Dividend distributions and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which the distributions and appropriations
are approved.
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4.23 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, as described in note 4, the management has
made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to financial statements: -

– classification of investments (Note 4.12);
– determining the residual values and useful lives of fixed assets (Note 4.14);
– impairment (Note 4.3 and 4.15);
– accounting for post employment benefits (Note 4.10.1);
– recognition of taxation and deferred tax (Note 4.9);
– provisions (Note 4.8);
– recognition of outstanding claims incurred but not reported (Note 4.4);
– calculation of premium deficiency reserves (Note 4.7).

5. SHARE CAPITAL

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

    2009     2008 2009 2008
     (Number of shares) Rupees Rupees

25,000,000 25,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully
   paid in cash 250,000,000 250,000,000

  7,500,000   7,500,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as
      fully paid right shares 75,000,000 75,000,000

32,500,000 32,500,000 325,000,000 325,000,000

Detail of the holdings of the parent company, associated companies and directors are as follows:

Saudi Pak Industrial and Agricultural Investment
  Company (Private) Limited - parent company 224,975,000 224,970,000
SILKBANK Limited (formerly Saudi Pak Commercial Bank Limited) -
   associated company 74,995,000 74,995,000
Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited - associated company 24,995,000 24,995,000
Directors 35,000 40,000

325,000,000 325,000,000

6. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Fund

The actuarial valuations are carried out annually and contributions are made accordingly.  Following were the
significant assumption used for valuation of the scheme: -

–  Discount rate 12.75 % (2008:11%) per annum.
–  Expected rate of increase in the salaries of the employees 10.6% (2008: 8.89%) per annum.
–  Expected interest rate on plan assets of the fund 12.75% (2008: 11%) per annum.
–  Expected service length of the employees 14.6 years (2008: 16.3 years).
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    2009 2008
   Rupees Rupees

6.1 Reconciliation of (receivable) / payable to define benefit plan

Present value of defined benefit obligations 3,867,244 3,676,147
Fair value of plan assets (4,354,853) (2,882,314)
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses) 61,975 (575,938)

(425,634) 217,895

6.2 Movement in (receivable)/payable to define benefit plan

Opening balance 217,895 (674,029)
Charge to profit and loss account 1,402,609 1,024,602
Contributions (2,046,138) (132,678)

Closing balance  (425,634) 217,895

6.3 Charges for defined benefit plan

Current service cost 1,289,390 1,056,821
Interest Cost 503,903 238,584
Expected return on plan assets (427,368) (286,269)
Recognition of loss 36,684 15,466

Amount charged to profit and loss account 1,402,609 1,024,602

6.4 Movement in present value of define benefit obligations

Opening balance 3,676,147 2,263,311
Current service cost 1,289,390 1,056,821
Interest Cost 503,903 238,584
Benefit paid (1,094,080) (193,794)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (508,116) 311,225

Closing balance 3,867,244 3,676,147

6.5 Movement in fair value of plan assets

Opening balance 2,882,314 2,685,336
Expected return on plan assets 427,368 286,269
Contribution to the fund 2,046,138 132,678
Benefit paid (1,094,080) (193,794)
Actuarial gain/(loss) 93,113 (28,175)

Closing balance 4,354,853 2,882,314

6.6 Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on assets 427,368 286,269
Acturial loss on assets 93,113 (28,175)

520,481 258,094 
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6.7 Composition of fair value of plan assets

2009 2008
Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage

Rupees   Rupees

Term Deposit Receipts - SILK
     BANK Limited (related party) 3,150,000 76% 2,650,000 94%

Cash and bank balance 1,015,807 24% 175,004 6%

4,165,807 100% 2,825,004 100%

6.8 Historical information
2009 2008 2007 2006

Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,867,244 3,676,147 2,263,311 1,224,917
Fair value of plan assets (4,354,853) (2,882,314) (2,685,336) (1,274,749)

(Surplus) / Deficit (487,609) 793,833 (422,025) (49,832)

Expected adjustments

      Acturial (gain)/loss on obligation (508,116) 311,225 195,066 –

      Acturial gain/(loss) on assets 93,113 (28,175) (56,938) –

2009 2008
Rupees Rupees

7. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Advertisement expenses 6,000 163,800
Audit fee payable 275,500 225,000
Others 642,523 709,458

924,023 1,098,258

8. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Federal excise duty payable 1,430,126 2,688,353
Federal insurance fee payable 86,111 258,546
Liabilities against cancelled policies 1,617,132 916,877
Tracker charges 1,499,325 113,000
Commission payable 7,134,172 8,713,047
Security deposit 980,626 200,000
Rent payable 631,425 358,691
Withholding tax payable 216,269 –
Others 831,034 664,627

14,426,220 13,913,141
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9. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT

There is no contingency or commitment.

2009 2008
   Note Rupees Rupees

10. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and other equivalent
–  Cash in hand 22,671 143,792
–  Policy and revenue stamps in hand 85,543 180,825

108,214 324,617

Current and other accounts
–  Current accounts 4,845,762 2,627,008
–  PLS saving accounts 10.1 25,105,101 86,140,846

29,950,863 88,767,854

Deposit maturing within 12 months -
  term deposit (related party) 10.2 2,330,000 730,000

32,389,077 89,822,471

10.1 This includes bank balance of Rs. 25,094,671 (2008: Rs. 85,616,609) with SILKBANK Limited (formerly
Saudi Pak Commercial Bank Limited) - a related party, that carries profit at the rate of 5% and 10% per
annum (2008: 8% and 15% per annum). Other PLS saving accounts carry profit at the rate of 4% to 5%
per annum (2008: 5% to 8% per annum).

10.2 This represents term deposit with SILKBANK Limited carrying return at the rate of 10% to 14.5% per
annum (2008: 9.5% to 14.5% per annum). The above deposit are due to mature on September 24, 2010.

11. LOANS TO EMPLOYEES - secured, considered good

Due from - executives 306,242 500,241
                - others 365,343 272,357

671,585 772,598

11.1 This represents short term advances to the employees of the Company in accordance with the terms of
their employment. These advances are recoverable in monthly instalments over a period of one year.

11.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans
2009 2008

Executives Others Executives Others
Rupees

Opening balance 500,241 272,357 1,004,161 456,688
Disbursements 860,600 1,617,600 960,000 525,800
Repayments (1,054,599) (1,524,614) (1,463,920) (710,131)

Closing balance 306,242 365,343 500,241 272,357 
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2009 2008
   Note Rupees Rupees

12. INVESTMENTS

The investment comprise the following:-

In related party 12.1 10,000,000 10,000,000
Held in maturity
   Pakistan Investment Bonds 12.2 31,853,722 25,000,000
At fair value through profit and loss -
   held for trading 12.3
Ordinary shares of listed companies 12.3.1 3,806,150 129,000
Closed end mutual fund 12.3.2 – 245,960

3,806,150 374,960

Available-for-sale 12.4
Ordinary shares of listed companies 12.4.1 11,139,291 18,249,352
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies 12.4.2 45,000,000 45,000,000
Open end mutual fund 12.4.3 – 3,202,692
Provision for impairment in value of investments (1,310,815) (13,213,759)

54,828,476 53,238,285

100,488,348 88,613,245

12.1 This represent certificate of placement with Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited carrying return at the
rate of 15% (2008:15%)

12.2 These bonds are held in favor of State Bank of Pakistan in accordance with the requirement of section
29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. These bonds have a face value of Rs. 32.5 million and carry mark-
up ranging from 9.1% to 11.5% per annum and would mature on August 22, 2010, June 18, 2012 and
August 30, 2013.

12.3 At fair value through profit and loss - held for
  trading investments - quoted shares

12.3.1 Ordinary shares of listed companies - (face value of Rs. 10 each)

Number of shares Name of the investee entity Carrying (market) value

2009 2008 2009  2008

Chemicals

20,000 10,000   Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 522,600 129,000

Bank

30,000 –   National Bank of Pakistan 2,231,100 –

Financial

35,000 –   Jahangir Siddique & Company Limited 1,052,450 –

Fixed Line Telecommunication

32,000 32,000   Callmate Telips Telecom Limited* –   –

3,806,150 129,000

* Trading in shares under suspension
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12.3.2 Closed end mutual fund - (face value of Rs. 10 each)

      Number of certificates Name of the fund Carrying (market) value

2009 2008 2009  2008
Rupees

– 44,000                   PICIC Growth Fund – 245,960

12.4 Available - for - sale investments

12.4.1 Ordinary shares of listed companies - (face value of Rs. 10 each)

       Number of shares Name of the investee entity Cost

2009 2008 2009  2008
Rupees

Oil and Gas
20,000 25,000   Oil & Gas Development Company Limied 2,122,205 3,290,590
15,000 –   Pakistan Petroleum Limited 2,696,364 –

Non Life Insurance
25,000 10,000   Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited 1,232,360 775,500

Life Insurance
10,000 –   EFU Life Assurance Limited 1,723,700 –

Banks
– 58,750   Askari Bank Limited – 3,622,427
– 51,000   Bank AL-Habib Limited – 3,063,280
– 20,000   Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited – 1,196,690
– 30,000   Soneri Bank Limited – 1,221,500
– 12,500   Bank of Punjab – 1,064,750

Personal Goods
– 25,000   Samin Textile Limited – 1,452,500
– 20,000   Azgard Nine Limited – 1,901,225

Construction and Materials
– 10,020   Fauji Cement Limited – 117,335

Financial Services
16,065 16,065   Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited* 226,625 226,625

Electricity
35,000 –   Hub Power Company Limited 1,051,255 –

Chemicals
10,000 –   Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 1,026,000 –

Fixed Line Telecommunication
50,000 –   Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited 1,060,782 –

Real Estate Investment and Services
–   10,000   Pace Pakistan Limited – 316,930

11,139,291 18,249,352

* These shares are deposited in to CDC account and blocked on the instruction of Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) in accordance with Circular No 9 of 2006 issued by the SECP, which requires promoters / majority
shareholders of NBFC to deposit their shares in to CDC blocked account.



12.4.2 Ordinary shares of unlisted companies - (face value of Rs. 10 each)

     Number of shares Name of the investee entity Cost

2009 2008 2009  2008

4,500,000 4,500,000 Pace Barka Properties Limited 45,000,000 45,000,000 

12.4.3 Closed end mutual fund

– 163,149 Pakistan Capital Market Fund – 1,202,692
(Par value of Rs. 10)

Reliance Income Fund
– 37,333 (par value of Rs. 50) – 2,000,000

– 3,202,692

2009 2008
   Note Rupees Rupees

12.5 Investment related expenses (refer the statement of investment income)

Brokerage commission 254,518 224,924
Custodian fees 8,500 43,638

263,018 268,562

13. PREMIUMS DUE BUT UNPAID - UNSECURED

Considered good 38,368,361 52,342,999
Considered doubtful 5,092,138 4,287,856

43,460,499 56,630,855

Provision against doubtful balance 13.1 (5,092,138) (4,287,856)

38,368,361 52,342,999

13.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful balances

Opening balance 4,287,856 –
Charge for the year 840,282 4,287,856

Closing balance 5,092,138 4,287,856

14. AMOUNT DUE FROM OTHER INSURERS /
   REINSURERS - UNSECURED

Considered good 78,705,068 69,929,387
Considered doubtful 1,550,044 1,335,120

80,255,112 71,264,507

Provision against doubtful balance (1,550,044) (1,335,120)

78,705,068 69,929,387 
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2009 2008
   Note Rupees Rupees

14.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful balances

Opening balance 1,335,120 –
Charge for the year 214,924 1,335,120

Closing balance 1,550,044 1,335,120

15. ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME

Accrued income on:

   Profit / loss sharing accounts 124,116 335,756

   Term deposit receipts 1,080,928 933,671

Dividend income 65,000 50,000

Interest on Pakistan Investment Bonds 965,493 404,945

2,235,537 1,724,372

16. REINSURANCE RECOVERIES AGAINST OUTSTANDING CLAIMS

These are unsecured and considered good.

17. PREPAYMENTS

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 55,982,003 71,116,440

Prepaid expense 867,291 965,065

Others 469,955 293,219

57,319,249 72,374,724

18. SUNDRY RECEIVABLES - Unsecured, Considered good

Deposit against office premises 2,579,268 2,563,908

Receivable against sale of shares 5,689,889 –

Receivables against staff retirement benefits 425,634 –

8,694,791 2,563,908
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19. FIXED ASSETS

4343

2009
C  O  S  T D  E  P  R  E  C  I  A  T  I  O  N Written down Depreciation

At Additions / At At For the At value as at rate
January 01 (Deletions) December 31 January 01 year December 31 December 31 %

                                                              Rupees
    

Tangibles

Office improvements 14,559,665 53,286 14,612,951 3,713,866 1,088,868 4,802,734 9,810,217 10

Furniture & Fixtures 1,928,010 68,266 1,996,276 631,232 200,262 831,494 1,164,782 15

Computer equipment 3,573,956 115,600 3,689,556 2,271,316 401,273 2,672,589 1,016,967 30
–     –

Office Equipment 5,933,300 70,300 5,848,880 2,044,682 578,746 2,571,704 3,277,176 15
(154,720) (51,724)

Motor vehicles 31,045,278 38,000 27,770,947 10,108,078 3,041,753 11,757,812 16,013,135 15
(3,312,331) (1,392,019)

57,040,209 345,452 53,918,610 18,769,174 5,310,902 22,636,333 31,282,277
(3,467,051) (1,443,743)

Intangibles

Computer software 4,207,986 –     4,207,986 4,207,986 –     4,207,986 –    20

                61,248,195 345,452 58,126,596 22,977,160 5,310,902 26,844,319 31,282,277
(3,467,051) (1,443,743)

2008
C  O  S  T D  E  P  R  E  C  I  A  T  I  O  N Written down  Depreciation

At Additions / At At For the At value as at rate
January 01 (Deletions) December 31 January 01 year December 31  December 31 %

                                                              Rupees
    

Tangible

Office improvements 12,299,645 2,260,020 14,559,665 2,670,772 1,043,094 3,713,866 10,845,799 10

Furniture & Fixtures 1,703,890 224,120 1,928,010 431,181 200,051 631,232 1,296,778 15

Computer equipment 3,363,450 255,506 3,573,956 1,753,127 526,622 2,271,316 1,302,640 30
(45,000) (8,433)

Office Equipment 5,236,134 697,166 5,933,300 1,411,823 632,859 2,044,682 3,888,618 15

Motor vehicles 26,065,645 5,370,112 31,045,278 6,933,154 3,341,517 10,108,078 20,937,200 15
(390,479) (166,593)

48,668,764 8,806,924 57,040,209 13,200,057 5,744,143 18,769,174 38,271,035
(435,479) (175,026)

Intangible

Computer software 4,207,986 – 4,207,986 2,259,848 1,948,138 4,207,986 – 20

                52,876,750 8,806,924 61,248,195 15,459,905 7,692,281 22,977,160 38,271,035
(435,479) (175,026)
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19.1 Particulars of disposal of fixed assets

Cost Written Sale (Loss) / gain Mode of Sold to Address
down value proceeds on disposal disposal

                       Rupees

Generators 139,520 94,970 23,000 (71,970) Negotiations M.N. Electrical & Karachi
Engineering Works

Fax machine 15,200 8,671 15,200 6,529 Claim Settlement             – Karachi

Honda City ACT-739 422,590 298,924 410,000 111,076 Negotiations Shammi Saleem Autos Karachi

Suzuki Mehran AHZ-796 395,850 221,705 260,000 38,295 Negotiations Shammi Saleem Autos Karachi

Suzuki Cultus AHE-096 683,455 372,782 493,133 120,351 Negotiations Mr. Waseem Mirza Karachi

Suzuki Mehran AJH-367 367,770 198,318 214,945 16,627 Claim Settlement             – Karachi

Suzuki Mehran AJC-682 351,900 188,938 286,786 97,848 Negotiations Mr. Waseem Mirza Karachi

Suzuki Mehran LEB-6029 361,000 225,358 353,000 127,642 Negotiations Mr. M. Jahangir Khan Lahore

Suzuki Mehran AKZ-752 365,266 206,436 329,000 122,564 Negotiations Mr. M. Jahangir Khan Lahore

Suzuki Mehran AKZ-852 364,500 207,206 310,000 102,794 Negotiations Mr. Muhammad Rafiq Multan

3,467,051 2,023,308 2,695,064 671,756 
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20. MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

2009 2008
Management General and Total * Management General and Total

expenses administration expenses administration
Note expenses expenses

           Rupees

Salaries, wages and benefits       20.1 31,619,581 5,579,926 37,199,507 35,279,134 6,225,729 41,504,863

Directors fee and expenses 662,352 116,886 779,238 667,246 117,749 784,995

Rent 5,320,572 938,924 6,259,496 5,653,089 997,604 6,650,693

Utilities 3,538,138  624,377  4,162,515 3,693,219  651,745 4,344,964

Legal and professional 1,303,894  230,099  1,533,993 1,226,084  216,368 1,442,452

Depreciation                                 19  4,514,267  796,635  5,310,902  4,882,522  861,621 5,744,143

Amortization   -    -    -   1,655,917  292,220  1,948,137

Vehicles expenses 4,454,368  786,065  5,240,433 4,918,481  867,967 5,786,448

Insurance 1,077,894  190,217  1,268,110 589,344  104,002 693,346

Tracker monitoring fee  5,067,033  -    5,067,033 10,683,149  -   10,683,149

Service charges 2,019,651  356,409  2,376,060 1,602,036  282,712  1,884,748

Printing and stationery 962,649  169,879  1,132,528 1,168,290  206,169  1,374,459

Travelling and conveyance  733,939  129,519  863,458 1,745,480  308,026  2,053,506

Advertisement 347,008  61,237  408,245 3,715,137  655,612  4,370,749

Computer maintenance 426,654  75,292  501,946 641,084  113,132  754,216

Office cleaning and maintenance 806,581  142,338  948,919 775,417  136,838  912,255

Credit rating fee 225,250  39,750  265,000 195,500  34,500  230,000

 Subscription and periodicals 173,695  30,652  204,347 213,363  37,652  251,015

Communication  248,956  43,934  292,890 333,520  58,856  392,376

Auditor's remuneration                 20.2 331,033  58,418  389,450 265,734  46,894  312,628

Inspection fee 36,716  6,479  43,195 37,342  6,590  43,932

Conference/Seminar  15,470  2,730  18,200 209,791  37,022  246,813

Entertainment 359,182  63,385  422,567 355,050  62,656  417,706

Bank charges 131,081  23,132  154,213 164,876  29,096  193,972

Provision against doubtful debts 1,019,206  -    1,019,206 5,622,976  -    5,622,976

Miscellaneous 387,237  68,336  455,573 390,648  68,938  459,586

65,782,405  10,534,619  76,317,024 86,684,429  12,419,698  99,104,127

* Expenses are allocated on the basis of 85% to management (underwriting) expenses and 15% to general
    and administration expenses.

20.1 This includes charge for defined contribution and defined benefit amounting to Rs.1.62 million and Rs. 1.4 million (2008: Rs.
1.75 million and Rs. 1.02 million)

2009 2008
   Rupees Rupees

20.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 175,000 150,000
Fee for interim review 75,000 50,000
Fee for regulatory returns 50,000 50,000
Certification fee 25,000 25,000
Out of pocket expenses 64,450 37,628

389,450 312,628

45



Saudi Pak Insurance Annual Report 2009

    
2009 2008

   Note Rupees Rupees

21. OTHER INCOME

Interest on term deposit receipts 5,998,522 2,445,750
Intereset on PLS saving accounts 2,135,475 5,200,058
Gain on sale of fixed assets 671,756 25,102
Exchange gain 310,983 2,093,450
Others 317,880 –

9,434,616 9,764,360

22. TAXATION

22.1 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented in
these financial statements as income of the Company is subject to minimum taxation under the provisions of
Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

22.2 Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences amounting to Rs. 48.46 million has not been recognized
in view of the uncertainty abouts its realisation.

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE
   Basic and diluted

2009 2008

Loss for the year Rs. 847,962 (59,883,832)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
   during the year of Rs. 10 each 32,500,000 22,785,494

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted Rs. 0.03 (2.63)

20. MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

2009 2008
Management General and Total * Management General and Total

expenses administration expenses administration
Note expenses expenses

           Rupees

Salaries, wages and benefits       20.1 31,619,581 5,579,926 37,199,507 35,279,134 6,225,729 41,504,863

Directors fee and expenses 662,352 116,886 779,238 667,246 117,749 784,995

Rent 5,320,572 938,924 6,259,496 5,653,089 997,604 6,650,693

Utilities 3,538,138  624,377  4,162,515 3,693,219  651,745 4,344,964

Legal and professional 1,303,894  230,099  1,533,993 1,226,084  216,368 1,442,452

Depreciation                                 19  4,514,267  796,635  5,310,902  4,882,522  861,621 5,744,143

Amortization   -    -    -   1,655,917  292,220  1,948,137

Vehicles expenses 4,454,368  786,065  5,240,433 4,918,481  867,967 5,786,448

Insurance 1,077,894  190,217  1,268,110 589,344  104,002 693,346

Tracker monitoring fee  5,067,033  -    5,067,033 10,683,149  -   10,683,149

Service charges 2,019,651  356,409  2,376,060 1,602,036  282,712  1,884,748

Printing and stationery 962,649  169,879  1,132,528 1,168,290  206,169  1,374,459

Travelling and conveyance  733,939  129,519  863,458 1,745,480  308,026  2,053,506

Advertisement 347,008  61,237  408,245 3,715,137  655,612  4,370,749

Computer maintenance 426,654  75,292  501,946 641,084  113,132  754,216

Office cleaning and maintenance 806,581  142,338  948,919 775,417  136,838  912,255

Credit rating fee 225,250  39,750  265,000 195,500  34,500  230,000

 Subscription and periodicals 173,695  30,652  204,347 213,363  37,652  251,015

Communication  248,956  43,934  292,890 333,520  58,856  392,376

Auditor's remuneration                 20.2 331,033  58,418  389,450 265,734  46,894  312,628

Inspection fee 36,716  6,479  43,195 37,342  6,590  43,932

Conference/Seminar  15,470  2,730  18,200 209,791  37,022  246,813

Entertainment 359,182  63,385  422,567 355,050  62,656  417,706

Bank charges 131,081  23,132  154,213 164,876  29,096  193,972

Provision against doubtful debts 1,019,206  -    1,019,206 5,622,976  -    5,622,976

Miscellaneous 387,237  68,336  455,573 390,648  68,938  459,586

65,782,405  10,534,619  76,317,024 86,684,429  12,419,698  99,104,127

* Expenses are allocated on the basis of 85% to management (underwriting) expenses and 15% to general
    and administration expenses.

20.1 This includes charge for defined contribution and defined benefit amounting to Rs.1.62 million and Rs. 1.4 million (2008: Rs.
1.75 million and Rs. 1.02 million)

2009 2008
   Rupees Rupees

20.2 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 175,000 150,000
Fee for interim review 75,000 50,000
Fee for regulatory returns 50,000 50,000
Certification fee 25,000 25,000
Out of pocket expenses 64,450 37,628

389,450 312,628
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24. REMUNERATION OF THE EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Officer Executives Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

                        Rupees

Managerial remuneration 2,903,229 2,767,946 5,339,345 5,928,768 8,242,574 8,696,714

House rent allowance 1,016,127 968,776 1,868,774 2,075,076 2,884,901 3,043,852

Utilities allowance 290,322 276,800 533,935 592,878 824,257 869,678

Medical allowance 290,322 276,800 533,935 592,878 824,257 869,678

4,500,000 4,290,322 8,275,990 9,189,600 12,775,990 13,479,922

Number of persons 1 1 9 8 10 9

24.1 In addition to the above, these executive are entitled to free use of Company maintained vehicles along
with driver’s salary

25. PREMIUM WRITTEN AND ADMINISTRATIVE SURCHARGE

Premium written and net premium revenue include administrative surcharge, class-wise details of which is
given below:

2009 2008
   Rupees Rupees

Direct and facultative

   Fire and property damage 1,401,833 1,824,455

   Marine 601,296 613,005

   Motor 2,656,631 4,034,467

   Miscellaneous 180,872 148,710

4,840,632 6,620,637
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26. SEGMENT REPORTING

Class of business wise revenue and results have been disclosed in the profit and loss account prepared in accordance with the
requirement of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. The following table presents information  regarding
segment assets, liabilities as at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, unallocated capital expenditures and non-cash expenses
during the year:-

Fire & Property Damage Marine, Aviation & Transport Motor Miscellaneous Treaty Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Rupees

SEGMENT ASSETS

Segment assets 206,845,004 335,570,252 7,052,203 25,201,866 18,157,116 145,933,934 43,758,016 46,234,940 – – 275,812,338 552,940,992

Unallocated corporate assets 246,886,350 81,762,827

Total assets 522,698,688 634,703,819

SEGMENT LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 200,873,111 275,879,721 9,940,001 9,829,289 64,898,734 119,010,330 32,155,270 29,035,678 – – 307,867,116 433,755,018

Unallocated corporate liabilities 13,962,522 217,895

Total liabilities 321,829,638 433,972,913

Capital expenditure 49,714 1,021,961 31,545 772,847 238,619 6,593,625 25,575 418,491 – – 345,452 8,806,924

Depreciation / amortization 764,284 892,616 484,961 675,032 3,668,476 5,759,107 393,181 365,525 – – 5,310,902 7,692,281

Saudi Pak Insurance Annual Report 2009
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27. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprises Saudi Pak Industrial & Agricultural Investment Company (Private) Limited (parent company), related
group companies, entities under common control, entities with common directors, major shareholders, directors, key management
personnel and employee retirement benefits funds.

Transactions and balances with parent As At December
  and associated companies 2009                    2008

Rupees                Rupees

Insurance premium
  Balance at beginning of the period 6,206,132  2,370,687 
  Gross insurance premium written 33,490,226  22,703,800 
  (including administrative surcharge,
  government levies and policies stamps)
  Received / adjusted during the period 33,247,719  18,868,355 

  Balance at end of the period 6,448,639  6,206,132 

Insurance claim expense
  Outstanding claims at beginning of the period 7,017,332  8,114,205 
  Gross claim expense for the period 11,883,411  8,497,356 
  Claim paid during the period 12,657,546  9,594,229 

  Outstanding claims at end of the period 6,243,197  7,017,332 

Other transactions during the year with Parent
  other associated companies

  Rental expense 301,490 1,022,716 

  Bank charges  123,958  182,275 

  Profit on TDR 5,308,795  1,899,476 

  Profit on bank deposits 2,130,475  5,162,395

  Dividend income -          -

Other balances with associated companies

  Term deposits 2,330,000  730,000 

  Investment in shares (at carrying amount)  22,652 46,589 

  Certificate of placements 10,000,000 10,000,000 

  Deposit accounts  25,094,671  85,616,609 

  Current accounts  4,598,497  2,363,937 

   Accrued investment income  1,205,044  1,269,427 

  Rent payable  -         60,000 

Transactions during the year with other
  related parties (Key management personnel)

  Contribution to the provident fund 1,625,887  1,751,778 

  Contribution to defined benefit plan 2,046,138  132,678 

  Remuneration of key management personnel  12,775,990  13,479,922 
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 As At December
  2009                    2008

Rupees                Rupees

Balances with other related parties
  (Key management personnel)

  Receivable / (payable) from defined benefit plan (3,867,244) (3,676,147)

  Loan to key management personnel 552,876 500,241

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (including
interest/markup rate risk and price risk). The Company's overall risk management program focuses on unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance. Overall risks
arising from the company's financial assets and liabilities are limited. The Company consistently manages its exposure
to financial risks without any material change from previous year in the manner described in the notes below. The
Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the Company's risk management policy.

28.1 Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge
its obligation and cause other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by
monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various
industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities.
As a result, any change in economic , political or other conditions would affect their ability to meet contractual
obligations in similar manner. The Company's credit risk exposure is not significantly different from that
reflected in the financial statements. The management monitors and limits the Company's exposure to credit
risk through monitoring of clients exposure and conservative estimates of provision for doubtful assets, if any.
The management is of the view that it is not exposed to the significant concentration of credit risk as its financial
assets are adequately diversified in entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:-

2009 2008
   Rupees Rupees

   Bank deposits 32,280,863 89,497,854

Investments 55,000,000 55,000,000

Premiums due but unpaid 38,368,361 52,342,999

Amount due from other insurers/re-insurers 78,705,068 69,929,387

Accrued investment income 2,235,537 1,724,372

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 158,453,079 199,162,904

Sundry receivables 8,694,791 2,563,908

373,737,699 470,221,424

Saudi Pak Insurance Annual Report 2009
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The Company did not hold any collateral against the above during the year. The impairment provision is written
off when the Company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. During the year receivables of Rs.1.09
million were further provided for. The movement in the provision for doubtful debt account is shown in note
13 and 14 to the financial statements. The remaining past due balances were not impaired as they relate to a
number of policy holders and other insurers / reinsurers for whom there is no recent history of default.

  2009                    2008
Rupees                Rupees

The age analysis of receivables is follows: -

Upto 1 year 88,544,033 91,601,372
1-2 years 15,632,354 20,927,316
2-3 years 10,367,430 5,256,213
Over 3 years 9,171,794 10,110,461

123,715,611 127,895,362

The credit quality of Company’s bank balances and term deposit receipt can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings as follows:

Ratings Ratings 2009 2008
Short Term Long Term Agency Rupees Rupees

SILKBANK Limited A- A3 JSR-VIS 29,483,540 87,980,546
United Bank Limited AA+ A1+ JSR-VIS 1,145 5,078
Soneri Bank Limited AA- A1+ PACRA 246,775 112,477
Habib Bank Limited AA+ A1+ JSR-VIS – 145,515
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. AAA A1+ PACRA 209,031 514,192
HSBC Bank Limited P-1 Aa2 Moody’s 10,372 10,044

29,950,863 88,767,852

Sector wise analysis of premium due but unpaid

Banks 1,806,902 929,161
Leasing companies 4,078,416  2,332,463
Textiles 6,763,211 10,602,214
Cement 406,038 401,959
Chemicals 1,370,614  890,460
Glass and ceramics  2,256,937 2,756,937
Hospital 10,441  26,429
Hotel 64,393  38,620
Petrol/CNG Pumps  617,305  672,275
Pharmaceuticals 901,645  1,424,473
Sugar factories 21,212  806
Telecommunications  1,683,622  1,676,506
Oil Mills  2,167,034  3,449,710
Showrooms  1,131,327  1,026,758
Miscellaneous  20,181,402  30,402,084

43,460,499 56,630,855
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The credit quality of amount due from other insurers and reinsurers can be assessed with reference to external
credit rating as follows:-

Amount due Reinsurances
from other recoveries Other 
insurers/ against reinsurance 2009 2008

reinsurers outstanding asset
claims

                                        Rupees

A or above (including PRCL) 78,285,244 148,090,886 55,982,003 282,358,133  330,105,561
BBB 1,969,868  10,362,193 – 12,332,061 11,438,290
Other – – – – –

Total 80,255,112  158,453,079  55,982,003 294,690,194  341,543,851

28.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. The Company finances
its operations entirely through equity.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments on an
undiscounted cash flow basis: -

                           2009
Carring Contractual More then
amount cash flows up to one year one year

                      Rupees

Financial Liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims  190,234,895  190,234,895  190,234,895  -

 Amount due to other insurer / reinsurers 6,660,359  6,660,359  6,660,359  -

Accrued expenses  924,023 924,023 924,023  -

Sundry creditors 14,426,220 14,426,220 14,426,220  -   

 212,245,497 212,245,497  212,245,497  -   

                           2008
Carring Contractual More then
amount cash flows up to one year one year

                      Rupees

Financial Liabilities 247,999,260 247,999,260 247,999,260  -

Provision for outstanding claims  17,400,753 17,400,753 17,400,753  -

Amount due to other insurer / reinsurers 1,098,258 1,098,258 1,098,258  -

Accrued expenses 13,913,141 13,913,141 13,913,141 -

Sundry creditors  280,411,412 280,411,412 280,411,412  -
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28.3 Market risk

Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in the market prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk
exposures within the acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. The market risks associated
within the Company's business activities are the interest / markup rate risk and price risk. The
Company is not exposed to material currency risk.

28.3.1 Interest /mark up rate risk

Interest /mark up rate risk is the risk that value of the financial instrument or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market /mark up rates. Sensitivity to
interest /mark up rate risk arises from the mismatch of financial assets and liabilities that mature
or re-price in a given period. The Company manages these mismatches through risk management
strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted.

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the company's significant interest bearing
financial instrument was as follows: -

2009 2008 2009 2008
Financial assets (Effective interest rate) Carrying amounts

Rupees               Rupees

Bank deposits 4% to 14.5% 9.50% 2,330,000  730,000 

Investments 9.1 % to 15% 9.1 % to 15% 41,853,722  35,000,000 

Sensitivity analysis

The Company does not have any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate will not effect fair value of any financial instrument.
For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments a hypothetical change of 100 basis
points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) profit for the year
by the amounts shown below.

It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument
containing interest rate risk. Variations in market interest rates could produce significant changes
at the time of early repayments. For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected
in the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all other variables will remain constant.

Profit and loss 100 bps
Increase            Decrease
Rupees               Rupees

As at December 31, 2009
  Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets  645,976  (645,976)

As at December 31, 2008
  Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 810,689  (810,689)
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28.3.2 Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in the market prices (other than those arising from interest/mark up rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting
all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk since
it has investments in quoted equity securities amounting to Rs.13,724,621 (2008 : Rs.8,367,285) at the balance
sheet date.

The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk are based on quoted market prices as of the
balance sheet date except for  unquoted securities  which are carried at cost and available for sale equity
instruments which are stated at lower of cost or market value (market value on an individual investment basis
being taken as lower if the fall is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the SEC
(Insurance) Rules, 2002 vide S.R.O. 938 dated December 2002.

Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an
investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale
of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold. The Company has
no significant concentration of price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarizes Company's equity price risk as of 31 December 2009 and 2008 and shows the
effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the year end, The selected
hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed,
results could be worse in Company's equity investment portfolio because of the nature of equity markets.

Had all equity investments, other than investment in unquoted securities, been measured at fair values as
required by IAS 39 "Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement", the impact of hypothetical change
would be as follows: -

Estimated Hypothetical Hypothetical
fair value Increase Increase

Fair Value Hypothetical after /(decrease) /(decrease)
hypothetical shareholders’ profit/(loss)
change in equity before tax

Rupees Rupees

December 31, 2009 13,911,952 10% increase  15,303,147 1,010,580  380,615 
10% decrease  12,520,757  (1,010,580)  (380,615)

December 31, 2008  8,613,245 10% increase  9,474,570  823,829  37,496 
10% decrease  7,751,921  (823,829)  (37,496)

28.4 Fair Value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an assets could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The carrying values of all financial assets and financial liabilities
approximate their fair values expect for equity and debt instruments held whose fair values have been disclosed
in their respective notes to the financial statements.
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28.5 Insurance risk

The Company accepts the insurance risk through its insurance contracts where it assumes the risk of loss from
persons or organizations that are directly subject to the underlying loss. The Company is exposed to the
uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of claims under these contracts.

Company manages its risk through its underwriting and reinsurance strategy within an overall risk management.
Reinsurance is purchased to mitigate the effect of potential loss to the Company from individual large or
catastrophic events and also to provide access to specialist risks and to assist in managing capital. Insurance
policies are written with approved reinsurers on either a proportional or excess of loss treaty basis.

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular demographic type
of policyholder, within a geographical location or types of commercial business. The Company minimizes
its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a number of reinsurers, who are dispersed over
several geographical regions.

Geographical Concentration of insurance risk
To optimize benefits from the principal of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is
of extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation
of risk with reference to the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazard associated with the
commercial/industrial/residential occupation of the insured. Details regarding the fire separation/segregation
with respect to the manufacturing procesess,storage,utilities,etc are extracted from the layout plan of the insured
facility. Such details are formed part of the reports which are made available to the underwriters/reinsurance
personnel for their evaluation. Reference is made to the standard construction specification as laid down by
IAP (Insurance Association Pakistan).For instance, the presence of Perfect Party Walls, Double Fire Proof Iron
Doors, Physical separation between the building within a insured's premises. It is basically the property
contained  within an area which is separated by another property by sufficient distance to confine insured
damage from uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most adverse conditions to that one area.

Address look-up  and decoding is the essential field of the policy data interphase of IT systems. It provides
instant location which is dependent on data collection provided under the policy schedule. All carried
underwriting information is punched into the IT system/application through which a number of MIS reports
can be generated to assess the concentration of risk.

For Marine risks, complete underwriting details, besides sums insured and premiums, like vessel identification,
voyage input (sea/air/inland transit), sailing dates, origin and destination of the shipments, per carry limits,
etc are fed into the system. The reinsurance module of the It system is designed to satisfy the requirement as
laid dawn in the proportional treaty agreement.

Reinsurance arrangements
Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, number of proportional  and non
proportional reinsurance arrangement are in place to protect the net account in case of a major catastrophic.
Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from
the proportional treaty , any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered from the non-proportional
treaty which is very much in line with the risk management philosophy of the company.

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted with Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on an annual basis.
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The Concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities:

Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net
2009                        2008 2009                     2008 2009                      2008

(Rupees in millions)

Fire  85,261,367,090  75,129,327,950  76,319,393,100  66,390,294,220 8,941,973,989  8,739,033,730

Marine 13,466,980,158 11,701,246,067 5,744,720,154 4,066,373,322  7,722,260,004  7,634,872,745

Motor 3,106,856,398 3,588,606,576 254,429,304 165,766,124  2,852,427,094  3,422,840,452

Miscellaneous 1,324,833,734 2,680,641,278 761,191,762 1,556,916,400  563,641,972  1,123,724,878

103,160,037,380 93,099,821,871  83,079,734,320  72,179,350,066  20,080,303,059  20,920,471,805

Sensitivity Analysis
The risk associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variable which complicate
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected
loss ratios. The Company considers that the liability for  insurance claims recognized in the balance sheet is adequate.
However, actual experience will differ from the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of change in
market conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the
impact on profit before tax net of reinsurance.

Pre tax profit/(loss) Shareholders’ equity
2009                            2008 2009                            2008

(Rupees)

10% increase in loss 

Fire  (1,226,090) (1,936,742) (796,958) (1,258,882)

Marine (460,440)  (405,715) (299,286) (263,715)

Motor  (4,797,016)  (7,923,042) (3,118,060) (5,149,977)

Miscellaneous (510,365) (64,557) (331,738) (41,962)

(6,993,911) (10,330,056) (4,546,042)  (6,714,537)

10% decrease in loss

 Fire 1,226,090 1,936,742 796,958 1,258,882 

Marine 460,440 405,715 299,286 263,715

Motor 4,797,016 7,923,042 3,118,060 5,149,977

Miscellaneous 510,365 64,557 331,738 41,962

6,993,911 10,330,056 4,546,042  6,714,537
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Claims development tables

The following table shows the development of fire claims over a period of time. The disclosure goes back to the period
when the earliest material claims arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims
payments. For other classes of business the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claims payments is usually
resolved within a year. Further claims with significant uncertainties are not outstanding as at December 31, 2009.

Analysis on gross basis

2007 2008 2009 Total
Accident year Rupees in '000

Estimate if ultimate claims cost:

  At end of accident year 323,213,421  423,571,411 172,783,597  919,568,429
  One year later 217,542,812  404,162,664  -    621,705,476
  Two years later 220,654,414  -    -    220,654,414

 Estimate of cumulative claims 220,654,414 404,162,664  172,783,597  797,600,675

 Cumulative payments to date 80,453,616 328,271,137 188,511,161  597,235,914

 Liability recognized in the balance sheet 140,200,798  75,891,527  (15,727,564)  200,364,761

29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as the going
concern in order to provide returns for share holders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividend to shareholders out of future profit, issue new shares and obtain new financing facilities.

30. RECLASSIFICATION

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified to reflect more appropriate presentation of events and
transactions for the purposes of comparison. Significant reclassifications made are as follows: -

From To   2008
Rupees

Placements Cash and bank balance Investments  10,000,000
Deposit against office premises Prepayments Sundry receivables  2,563,908

31. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on March 12, 2010.
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